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To
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit And Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information (‘the Financial Statements’).

2. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind
AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of Affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2025, and its Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act, Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Other Information

4, The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

5. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

6. In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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7. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

8. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the State of Affairs,
loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit logs; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

12. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

12.2, Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also responsible for
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12.3,

12.4,

12.5,

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

16. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

16.1
16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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16.6  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’. :

16.7  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act.

17. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

17.1  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

17.2  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses

17.3 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

17.4 The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Refer Note 37(c) of the Financial
Statements.

17.5 The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Refer Note 37(d) of the Financial
Statements,

17.6 Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representation under paragraph 17.4 and 17.5 contain any material misstatement.

17.7  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act by the
Company is not applicable.

17.8 Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
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Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

< ,.\J\,M’J \t’.’
Soorej Kombaht
Partner il ©f \" \
ICAI Membership No: 164366 Q \Accaunlanls /&
UDIN: 25164366BMNUMK4022 \ \_ /

Place: Pune
Date: 28 April 2025
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 15 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

i (a)

(b)

iii.  (a)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’).

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, all PPE were
physically verified by the management in the current year. In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable properties
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its PPE or intangible assets or both during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company as stated in note 37(a) to the financial statement, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
engaged in business of distribution of financial products through digital means and does not have
any physical inventory, hence physical verification of inventory and reporting under paragraph
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned any working capital limits at any point of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security
to any other entity. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the investments
made by the Company are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interests of the Company. Further, the
Company has neither provided any guarantees or securities, nor has it granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans. Consequently, the reporting requirements in respect of the terms
and conditions of such loans and advances, as specified under paragraph 3(iii)(b) of the Order, are
not applicable to that extent.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vi.

vii.

viii

(d)

(e)

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters/ Related
Parties (as defined in section 2(76) of the Act which are either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, or given any guarantee or provided any securities as covered under the
provisions of sections 185 of the Act. In respect of the investments made by the Company, the
provisions of sections 186 of the Act have been complied with.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year
in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues inctuding Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and any other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of
customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that
following dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues, have not been deposited to/ with the appropriate authority on account of any dispute:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks,
Statute the Dues (absolute) which the dispute is if any
amount pending
relates
GST 2,72,658 FY 2019-20 Joint
Goods and L.
} Commissioner,
Service Tax Mah ht
Act, 2017 aharashtra
GST 2,716,254 FY 2020-21 Joint
Goods and .
. Commissioner,
Service Tax Mah ht
Act, 2017 aharashtra

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any
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Xi.

Xii.

Xxiii

Xiv.

XV

(a)

b)

c)

transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not borrowed any loans from any
lender. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loan during
the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised any loans on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture, Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix)(e) & 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of
the order is not applicable.

The Company has complied with provisions of section 62 of the Act in respect of allotment of equity
shares against convertible loan instrument. The funds raised from the convertible loan instrument
were utilised for the purpose for which they were raised.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year there
has been no fraud by the Company or any material fraud on the Company that has been noticed or
reported. The management has identified fraud by employees of the Company which were
individually and collectively immaterial.

In our opinion-and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
subsection (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year, while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Companyis nota
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its di rs. Accordinglv. paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not anolicable to the Company.
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xvi  {a} In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, in the group (in accordance with Core
Investment Companies (CICs) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 18 companies forming
part of the promoter/promoter group of the Company which are CICs. Further, as informed these
CICs are unregistered CICs as per Para 9.1 of notification No. RBI/2020-21/24 dated 13 August 2020
of the Reserve Bank of India.

xvii According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not incurred cash
loss in the current financial year. However, the amount of cash loss in the previous year was
Rs.21.67 crores.

xviii There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly paragraph
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they falt due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

XX, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the provision of CSR is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
provision of clause 3{xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company and is not required
to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

. v’
S\

Soorej Kombaht Sks.
Partner

ICAl Membership No: 164366

UDIN: 25164366BMNUMK4022

Place: Pune
Date: 28 April 2025 Page 4 of 4
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 16.6 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv
Direct Limited (‘the Company’) as at 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the
Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing (‘SA ), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.
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6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

7. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621
. w
S vy Are>
Soorej Kombaht Sk,
Partner

ICAl Membership No: 164366
UDIN: 25164366BMNUMK4022

Place: Pune
Date: 28 April 2025
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BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

Ink
Particulars Note No.  As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Pioperty, Plant and Equipment 3 5199 6277
Intangible assets 3 7504 8520
Financial Assets
Tnvestments 4 999
Other financial assets 5 602 28 20
Other non-cunent asscts 6 6 88 544
149.92 181.61
Current assets
Financial Assets
Investments 4 296 54 35995
Trade receivables 7 8561 68 86
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4184 3001
Othet financial assets 5 2617 676
Current lax assets (uet} 601 865
Othet curnent assets 6 2072 13 85
476.89 488.08
Total Assets 626.81 669.69
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equitv Share Capital 9 327 41 312
Instraments entitely equity in nature 10 803 41
Other equity I 151 04 (278 39)
Total equity 478.45 528.14
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 2121 2813
Provisions 12 302
Defenred tax liabilities (net) 13
24.23 28.13
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 1395 1431
Trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 381 725
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micio enterprises and small
enterprises 58 62 49 47
Other financial liabilities 15 3136 27 44
Other current liabilities 16 1525 1392
Piovisions 12 114 103
124.13 113.42
Total Equity and Liabilities 626.81 669.69
Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 2C
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of ow report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
Foi KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants M
(formerly Khimji Kunveuji & Co LLP) -—
Firm Registration No: 105146W/ W100621 A
Chaitman Chairman, Audit Committee
v’ DIN: 00070679 DIN: 07539410
Soorej Kombaht Anshuman Mishia
Partner CFO
ICAT Membership No: 164366 DIN: 10106286
2 2 Y
28 April 2025 Pur‘? 3
O‘B' ; r _
. Chartered * Namrata Suiana Shah

X
Accountants Company Secretary



BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

In T crore
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(I) Revenue from contracts with customeis 17 561 85 436 56
(IT)  Other income 18 3658 3858
(TTT) Total income (I+1T) 598.43 475.14
(IV) Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 29517 254 29
Finance costs 20 275 330
Depreciation, amoitisation and impairment expense 21 70 55 5673
Other expenses 22 278178 23345
Total expenses 647.25 547.77
(V) Loss before tax (TIT-TV) (48.82) (72.63)
(VI) Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense 23
(VII) Loss for the period (V-VI) (48.82) (72.63)
(VIIT) Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be 1eclassified to profit o1 loss
Remeasuiement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (087) (012)
Tax impact on above
(IX) Other comprchensive income for the period (net of tax) (VIT+VIII) (0.87) (0.12)
Total comprehensive income for the period (49.69) (72.78)
(X) Basic and diluted Earnings per share (in ) 24 (64 56) (23279)
(Nominal value per share X [0}
Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 2C
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
For KKC & Associates LLP -
Chartered Accountants M M
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
Fiom Registration No: 105146W/ W100621 Anish Amin
Chairman Chairman, Audit Committee
w DIN: 00070679 DIN: 07539410
Soorej Kombaht Mishra
Partner Whole Time Director & CEO CFO
ICAT Membership No: 164366 DIN: 10106286

Pune: 28 April 2025

Or~—_

o Namrata Surana Shah

© Company Secretary

2 Charlered
4



BAJAJ FINSERY DIRECT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

A, Equity share capital

Particulars

At the beginning of the yea
Changes in cquity share capilal during the ycar
Balanee as ut 31 March 2025

B. [nstrumnents entirely equity in nature

Particulars

Al the beginning of the year
Addition / (moxcment 1o cquity) dwing the ycar
Balance as at 31 March 20258

C. Other cquity

Curren( year
Particolars

Retained carnings

At Lhe beginning of the year

Addition duiing the year

Laoss for the year

Recognition of sharc based payments to employees
Other comprehensine income (nef of Lax)

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Previous year

Particulars

Retained carmings

At the heginning of the year

Addition during the year

Loss for the year

Recognition of sharc based payments (o employces

Other comprehensitve income (nel of tax)
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company
The accompaiying notes are an integral part of the financial slalements
Tn terms of ow report of even date

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formeily Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
Fitm Repistiation No: 105146W/ W100621

L. v
S

Sooiej Kombaht

Partner

ICAT Membership No 164366
Pune 28 Apnl 2025

she
OQ Chartered
< Accountants

*

In € crore
Note No. Year ended Year endedd
. 31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
312 312
32429
32741 312
Note No. Year ended Year ended
ote N 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
803 41 303 41
180341
B03.41
crore
Reserves and surplus
Note No Total other equity
L . . . Share based -
Sccuritics premiom Retained eannings N
[ryments resernce
207 (283.47) 3 (278.39)
479102 479 12
{8 82) {48 82)
MR (0.87)
41,19 (333.16) 3 151
Reserves and suiplus
Nuote No. B ! ) ) Share based Total other equity
Securities premium Retained carnings
payments reseryve
247 (210.72) 299 (205.66)
(72 63) (7263)
002 002
[(R¥A] 01
27 (283,47 3 {274 3N
2c
On behalf of the Board of Directors
Anish Amin —
Chairman Chaitman, Audit Commitlee
DIN: 00070679 DIN: 07539410
.

Director & CEO
DIN: |

Surana Shah
Company Secietary

Y

Anshuman Mishia
CFO



Particulars

1. Operating activities

BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2025

Piofit/ (loss) before tax

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of (premium)/discount on acquisition of debt securities on inves
Remeasurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans

Net gain/ (loss) on sale of assets

Net gain/ (loss) on sale of financial instruments

Interest expense from fair valuation of deposits

Interest on lease deposits

Interest income on investments

Securities premium reserve

Shaie based payments reserve

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instiuments at fair value thiough profit or loss

Cash from operation befot e working capital changes

Wotking capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Tncrease)/deciease in loans and advances
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Inctease/(deciease) in provisions

Income-tax paid, including tax deducted at source (net of refunds)
Net cash (used)/generated in operating activities (A)

Carried forward

(70 55)
712
087
552
267
(0 38)
(2.75)
1563

(10 18)
(020

(16 75)
(17 95)
571
827
011

(48 82)

52 25y
343

(20 61)
262
(14.56)

(14 56)

31 March 2024

(56.73)
14 38
0.12
012
272
(036)
(3 30)
1502

(627)
022

(30 61)
(20 40)
38 64
(22 46)
(03N

(72 63)

(34 08)
(38 55)

(35 20)
(728)
(81.03)

(81 03)



BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Biought forward (14 56) (81 03)
1. Investing activitics
Puichases of property. plant and equipment (roon) (16 62)
Sales proceeds of propeity, plant and equipment 10 01 193
Puichases/internal development to intangibles (36 64) (39 42)
Purchase of investments measured at amortised cost (539 74) (514 56)
Sale of investments measured at amortised cost 574 87 689 67

Tnvestment in Fixed Deposits
Proceeds fiom redemption of fixed deposits

Tnterest received on investments 17 50 1915

Sale of investments measured at FVTPL 764 86 643 87

Puichase of investments measured at FVTPL (736 98) (662 85)

Net cash generrated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 43.87 121.17

[TII. Financing activities

Deemed equity contribution fiom holding company
Proceeds fiom issue of share capital

Payment of lease lability (17 48) 1509

Net cash gencerated from financing activities (C) (17.48) (15.09)

Net inciease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 11.83 25.05

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 3001 496

Cash and cash eauivalents as at the end of the vear 41 84 3001
* W 7\’?

For KKC & Associates LLP Anish Amin Mayu

Chartered Accountants Chairman Chairman, Audit Committee

(formetly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) DIN: 07539410

Firm Registration No: 105146W/ W 100621
w
S v & CEO CFO

Soorej Kombaht

Partner
ICAI Membership No: 164366 Secretary
Pune: 28 Apiil 2025 Namrata Surana Shah

Sk
Chartered
< Accountants

*



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Corporate information

Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (the “Company”) is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on
7 February 2014 and started commercial operation on | July 2018. The Company is engaged in the
business of distribution of financial products through digital means. The Company is registered with
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) as a composite Corporate Agent for
distributing life insurance and general insurance products in India and also is a Registered Investment
Advisor (RTA) under SEBT regulations. Further, the company also provides software services to its clients.
The Company also operates its overseas branch at Dubai to provide software services.

The Company's registered office is at Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai-Pune road, Pune,
Maharashtra, India. The parent of the Company is Bajaj Finserv Ltd (hercinafter referred to as “Holding
Company” or “parent™).

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
28 April 2025.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company prepares and presents its Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement
of Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by Division II of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of
Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash
Flows'.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule IT (Division IT) to the Act. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current
or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance
Sheet. They are offset and reported net only where it has legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously as permitted by Ind AS. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses
and reports the same on a net basis where the netting off reflects the substance of the transaction or other
events as permitted by Ind AS.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions
of'the Act, on an accrual basis.

Further, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Management is satisfied that
the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the
Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value or amortized book value.

The financial statements are presented in 2, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all the
values are rounded off to the nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated.

Pune



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements and disclosures made
therein are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of
the financial statements, which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. The following are
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates is included in
the relevant notes together with information about basis of calculation for each affected line item in the
financial statements:

a) Provision for employee benefits
b) Impairment and useful life of intangibles
¢) Fair valuation of financial instruments.

Summary of material accounting policies
1) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised (o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its
recovery.

a) Revenue from sale of services

i) Income from distribution of financial products
Distribution income is earned by distribution of services and products of other entities
under distribution arrangements such as distribution of loan products, insurancc
products, credit cards, fixed deposits, bundled products and services etc. The income so
earned is recognised on transfer of promised services and / or products to a customer on
behalf of other entities or delivery of contractual outcome to other entities, as the case
may be.

ii) Income from manpower supply services
Income from manpower supply services is recognized on accrual basis as and when
services are rendered, and it becomes due on contractual terms with the parties.

iii) Income from providing software services
Software services provided by the Company are primarily under variable price contracts.
Revenue from software services is recognized in the accounting period in which they are
rendered. Any changes in the revenue recognized basis estimates, is reflected during the
period such change in estimate is known to the management. Customers are invoiced on
a monthly basis and consideration is payable by customer when invoiced.

iv) Income from sale of value added services
The Company recognizes Income from sale of value added services on rendering of
Services.

b) Other income

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate
(ETR) method on financials assets subsequently measured under amortised cost. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the instrument.

Interest on income tax refund is recognized on receipt of refund advise.

The Company recognises Other Income on accrual basis.

2) Property, plant and equipment

A. Recognition and derecognition
Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16
'Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use
on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

B. Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis on straight line method to allocate the cost, net of
residual value over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in the Schedule IT of
the Companies Act, 2013, except for Vehicles which are depreciated over four years on the
basis of management’s best estimate.

Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided on straight line method over the
primary period of lease of premises or 5 years whichever is less.

3) Intangible assets and amortization thereof

4

Intangible assets, representing softwares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried
at cost fess accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment.

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs
necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Company. For internally developed intangibles, such as software, platforms,
applications, expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

Expenditure incurred on development of internally generated intangible assets, is recognised as
an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such
know-how are probable to flow to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured
reliably.

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of five years,
which is the Management’s estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
“Intangible assets under development”

Investments and financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially

at fair value. Further, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs, that arc attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, are added to



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

the fair value. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
The Company classifics its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), and
e those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost.

The classification is done depending upon the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets classified as ‘measured at fair value’, gain/(loss) will either be recorded in profit or
foss or other comprehensive income, as elected. For assets classified as “measured at amortised
cost’, this will depend on the business model and contractual terms of the cash flows.

Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups
of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a
higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

¢ How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

e The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspecis of the
Company’s assessment

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial
assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test (Solely Payments of Principal and Interest)
As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of
financial instruments to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset.

Subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost e.g.
debentures, bonds, certificate of deposits etc. A gain/(loss) on a financial asset that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derccognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
investment income using the effective interest rate method.

Pune 3
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Subsequently measured at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost, are measured at FVTPL e.g.
investments in mutual funds. A gain/(loss) on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at
FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss with
other gain/(loss) in the period in which it arises.

The Company has designated investments in mutual funds as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide
for the same in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (if any). This amount is reflected under the
head *other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery basis past trends. Where the amount to be written off is
greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is recorded as an expense in the
period of write off. Any subsequent recoveries against such assets are credited to statement of
Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets

A linancial asset is derecognised only when:

e Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

e  The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either: (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the assets Any gain or loss on derecognition will be recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss..

5) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gain and loss, including any interest expense, are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gain
and loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Pune 3
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Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value adjusted for incremental transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the financial liabilities except in the case of financial liabilities
recorded at fair value through profit or loss where the transaction costs are charged to profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

6) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels are tested for impairment at each reporting date and also whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assels or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Impairment losses of continuing aperations, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
7) Employee benefits

a) Compensated Absences and Leave Encashment

Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of
service, as per the rules of the Company. The liability for accumulated leave which can be
availed and/or encashed at any time during the tenurc of employment is recognized using the
projected unit credit method at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The
liability for accumulated leave which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year is
provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed leave balance as at the balance sheet
date.

b) Gratuity

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity
fund, which fully covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC).
However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC and BALIC as compared to the liability on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability. The Calculation
includes assumptions with regard to discount rate, salary escalation rate, attrition rate and
mortality rate. Management determines these assumptions in consultation with the plan's actuaries
and past trend.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method in conformity with the principles and manner of computation
specified in Ind AS 19.

Pune
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

¢) Employee stock option scheme

Stock options are granted to eligible employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 as
formulated by Bajaj Finserv Limited (“Holding Company™). The scheme is administered through
Bajaj Finserv Employee Stock Option Trust (“The Trust”). The mode of settlement of the scheme
is through equity shares of the holding company. Further, cost of such options i.e Option
premium, which is reimbursed to the holding company is accounted in line with Ind AS 102
‘Share based payments.

The fair value of options granted under the Bajaj Finserv Ltd. - Employee Stock Option Scheme
(BFS-ESOS) is recognised as an employee benefits expenses. This amount is reimbursed to the
holding company and is accounted in line with Ind AS 102 ‘Share based payments. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions (e.g.,
continuance of an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss.

In case of forfeiture/lapse stock option, which is not vested, amortised portion is reversed by
credit to employee compensation expense. In a situation where the stock option expires
unexercised, the related amount is recovered from the holding company.

d) Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, bonus and other non-monetary benefits
are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related services. All short term
employee benefits are accounted for on undiscounted basis.

The Company has made contribution to superannuation fund, provident fund and pension scheme
as per the scheme of the Company or to Government authority and this contribution is recognized
in P&L as and when employee renders the related service.

Taxes

a) Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961; and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

b) Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
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recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

c) Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

9) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

10) Leases

The Company’s lease majorly counsists of office space taken on lease.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in para 6.
Impairment of non-financial assets.
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ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the government yield for the average lease period. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term.
a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
equipment (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Tt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

11) Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences
All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income as permitted under the relevant Ind AS.

12) Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous
accessible market as applicable. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy into Level 1, Level 1T and Level 111 based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.
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Bajuj Finsery Diregt Limited

Notes to financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2025

4
at As
31 Muveh 2015 31 March 2024 31 March 1015
In¥crose In® crore In¥crore 3
1 Investinent carried af uinor tised caat
In Ces tificate of Deposits
Qunted
Axis Bank: - - 2407 2426
Bank of Baroda - - 4433 2414
Canarn Bunk - - 27 2481
1IDFC Rank - - 4311 2420
SIDBI - - - 494y
Anortised Cast - - 145.24 147.52
In Bonds & Debentures
Quoted
Power Finance Corporatian 1491 249
Nationul Bank for Agricultural & Rural Development 999 49 63 5T
Rural Eleenification Corportion 4935 19 R4
sionr 2994
1IDIC Bank
Axis Bank
Ao lised Cast 299 - 138,88 174.60
IT Ivestment cai vied at Fali Value through profit und tuss
Insestirent in Mutual Funds
Quoted
109719 705 {31 March 2024 : 359022 9D ) BIS AMC Mutual Fund - - 12.42 3193
Fulr Value - - 1242 37R3
Aggregate ma) het value of quoted Investuents v9y 296.54 359.95
All investments mentioned above a1¢ within Indle
Non-curvent
31 March 2028 31 Murch 3024 31 Murd 1028 SU Murch 2024
In ¥ crore n ¥ crore e crore In® crore
602 2920 2162 oM
- - 4.55 642
6.02 28,20 26.17 5.76
6
In ¥ crore In®crore
Advances recovel uble th cush o1 dind
Scoured considered good
Advances to related parties 499 405
Umecured considered good - - 0R3 0.18
Doubiful - - -
. - 582 423
Provision for doublful sdvances - - -
582 4.23
Gramily (refir note 26) - -
Other receivable 6.88 54 14.90
6.88 544 20.72

Note: Advances to related parties couttribute o 85 74% of ot advmnces as on Mar31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 95 )

ks Pune
Chartered



j Finsery Divect Limited

Notes to financial stalemenis for the year ended 31 March 2028

7 Thrade receivahles
(Unsecured, constdered gund, unless stated nthornise)

Cuntent
Asal
31 \lureh 2025 31 \arch 2024
In ¥ crore n¥crore
Recenubles
Gvwands disribwtion o i d jany grodonte U 4
Gnands sale of saftwars serees wn N
Gmands manpewer ipph sersices 1147
wihers 062 025
HE61 6856
Asun
Contraet balnces 30 March 2028 31 Vel 2024

Accotnts reces ible aee recozned whe the el o consideration become s angonditon il

ettty relates 1o payments tecerved w afvance of plomance wnder the

ol

No haile ¢

duector o

other recenable e e om dineclors or ol

otlicers o fhe vampany cutber severally or antly will any atler peron No

A e o other recen able e due Trom finms o prate compames espeetsel m sl duccton s a e »

memiber

-« ageing schedule Outstanding fn Following poviads fi ot due date of p
Notdue  Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 Mare th

ayTient

an year

31 Mlnch 2028

Undisputed trade recersables — consifered ol 636
Uil due s

I M b 2024

Vindsspued 1 e recenabiles — conleced woo 4805 2 5437
Unhilled du 4y
H
Cutrent
Asat
n P crore In ¥ crote

es with hank 5

4184 Jnm

Pune
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Bajaj Finsery Direel Limited

Notes to financial stateinents for the year ended 31 March 2025

9

10

11

Eauity share caj

Authurised

50 00 00 000 equity shares of 2 10 carh

Issued, sulseribed and fully paid-up shaies

3274 10 400 equity shiares of 2 10 cach

Reconcitlation of the that e out

Equiny <hares
Atthe heginnmz of (e ye:
Lquuty shares rssued duneg flic yea

Qutstanding a1 the end of the yrur

Termehight

The Cumpany has only one cluss of equity shares having u par swhue ot 210 per share Each holder ol equity s
Dircetors and approved by tre harchulders in e anniial general meetin

ched t vquity shares

ding at tie beginning wnd ut the nd of the yea

Asat
31 Maich 2025 31 Muich 2024
1n ¥ crore In ¥ crore
30000 150
2741 a2
327 41 3z

As
120 000 in
24290 4w 24
32,74,70 400 2741

31 20 0o a2

31 20,000 31z

ares is entided 10 vne vate per shiare The ntenm dividend declared by the Bord of Ducetors wid the diadend propased by the Rourd ol

prefierential anounts The dictnbutan will be  praportion to the mimber of equity shares held by the shareliolders

Details ol

eholdes s holling

Equity shai ex of 2 10 each fully pald

x of promoter sharcholiling

Shares held by gromuiess at the end of the year

Promoter naine

Ralance as ar the begiming of fhe year

e Hy

5% sharev it the U

Add Addition + (musemen ta cqity ) duting the year

Closmg buluree

Asut
31 Murch 2025

< paid in Indian vupees. I Uie even of Tiquidation of (lie Compiny. the holders of equity shares will i entitled 10 receive 1emmmng assets of the Comipany afier distrbuion of all

Nos

"% lalding

262255730

80 10%

Nos. % Hulding Nowe. o Ulotding
262255730 8010% 2500 001
63154670 1990 20 000 %
\sat
31 March 2024
% (hange during, Nos % Hulding % Change duting the
the year vear
-0 0¥ 23 00 000 80 13% -
As
or
®O3 1 0341
(303 41)
803, 11

Represents loan amaunt received by the Company from Nugap Finsers 1 imited 2522 94 coure and Bajay kinance | inited 2280 47 crore The luan outstanding has been converted ito equity shares during Ue year at the tems agreed ot the fime of ixstunce

Other cauity

Securities premiwn

Dalance ss af the beginning of the year
Add: Received dunmg the year
Balunce in sccuritics premium reserve

Retalned ewinings
Bafance os at the beginng of the yea
Profitloss) for fhe year

liems of olicr comprelicnsive income recognised dircetly in retained catnings

Acutarigl gainsflosses of defined benelit plans

L ess: Approprialions
Balunce iil retoined eamings

Shai ¢ based pavments | eserve
at the beginning of e year

Nature and purpose of teserve :

Secutifies premium
S

Retulned carnings
Retaned ¢

jon ol share lascd payments 1o employees

The Company recopnises change o aceoun! ol

acruurial gains and fosses
retum o plan assets eseladine
any ch

Share based paymenls reserve is vreated s required by Ind AS 102— Share Based Payments o the Enployee Stock Opliom Selieme

S

ings reprzsents fhe suplus i profit ind Tess account and appiopriations

casurement of the et defined b

she
Chartered
Accountants

*

¢ the cfTect af Uhe asset cerling excluding anonnts included w net interest on the net defined benetit hability (asset)

fit hability (asseyy as pant of retaned camings wilh sepaiate disclosure: whch comprises ol

Pune

ilies premiom is nsed 1o recond e premum on 1ssue of hares The teserve ean be uhsed mly G hnited purposes i oecordance wath section 52 and other prowisiens of e Comprnies Act 2013

31 Narch 2025

31 March 2024

v or
207 207
47912 -
4RL1Y 20/
(20347) (21072)
(48 82) (1263
(047)
(333.16) (28347
301 299
- 002
Aol a0
15104 (278.39)
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12 Provisinns

Non-curient Curtent

31 Murch 2024

In P crore In¥ crore In ¥ crore In ¥ crore

Pravision for einployee benefits [See note 26]
Provision for grauity a0z
Provision for compensated ubssences 4 103

13 Deferred tax liabilitics (ne()

Deferied tax labilities

On account of timmg dilference in
Retiral and wher benlils
Delined benelil plans provisions - OCI
Finincial instrunients :

Frir valuation of muiual funds including FM1” 008
Gross deferyed (ux lialilittes n24

Neferred tax aseets

On ecount of timing difference in
Detimed benetit plans provisions - (X1 024 003

Recognized w the estent of Defencd s haluhty

Griss deferned fax uscets

relute o meome laxes levied by e same lax athony

Il Company ollsets lax assets und liallies of and only o it has o legnlly enforceable yight 10 sct oft cusent tax assets wnd eurent tax liubilites and the defened s assely wid delerred rax labil
Deterred wx assels are recopmsed tor uniised Lax losses 1o the extent that
fial can be recognised based upen e likely Gming and dhe level of futwe

ine the amounl of defered Y asscts

s prohable that wxable profit will be available
ablo profits lowetlier with fitare tax planning

ainat which e losses can be uihsed Signilicant managenient judgement is 1e

nulegies

The Company has brought forward ta Tosses | lese losses relate 10 brosght forwand business losses and unabsorbed depreciation The Company neilfi has any Laxable lkmporary difference nor uny Lax planmig oppostunitics as ailable that could panly
support lhe 1ecognition of these lasscs as delerred tax assels On (s basis e Company has determined that it camot reengmise delemed wy assets on the ax losses biought forward

4 Trade payables
As
31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
In ¥ crore In¥ crore
Towl ducs of micio ises and smadl i s 12
T otat outstanding dues of cieditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 3462 1947
6243 5672

Trade payrhles ageing schedule

Purticulars Outstanding for fullowing pet lods f ot due
Leas than | year 12 years 2-3yeurs T
31 Murch 2025
MsME LR} 36l
Otliers 1152 004 16u
Unbitled 4702 4702
31 March 2024
MSME 735 718
Others 960 025 995
Unbilled 3962 3962
‘There an: no disputed dues
15 Other financial liabi
Nun-curtent Cunvent
Asat Asat

31 March 2025

| case linbihly [See nole 34] 2121 2813 1395 4
EEmployee benefits payuble - - 2967 2633
Olher payables® - - 169 oy

2021 2813 4531 4175

Refer note 31 for financial Tiabilitics measied ol unortrsed cos
*Olher payables comprises of liability fo xpenses saury payable wnd ncome received i advance

6 Other current liahilities
Asal
31 Maich 2024
Ine crore
Sttutory dues payahle 5 1392
1528 1392

Pune
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

17 Revenue from contract with customers

Fur the ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1n ® crore In ¥ crore
Revenue from cantract with cuslomers
Type of Services
Income from distribution of (hird party products® 28629 21160
Revenue from softwere services 12079 9925
Manpower supply services 7863 6306
Income: from sule ol vulue sdded services 7614 40.65
* Includes insurance income X | 27 crore (11 Mureh 2024 : X0 79 crore)
Geographical macke(s
Indis 561 64 436 56
Oulside India 021

561.85 436.56
——

Timing of revenut recognliion

Services iranafermed ot @ point in lime 561 B3 436 56
Totul revenue from contracl with cusfumers 561.85 436.56
In€ crore In® crore
Inlerest income on deposits 202 0.25
Tterest income on honds/debenturcs 561 477
isution ol premium/di oni 712 438
Inlerest on income tx refund 041 0Ny
Guin an valuation and gain on realisation of mutuul funds messured at FVTPL 247 2.94
Provision no longer required an 5.55

Profit on sule of inimgible assis 525 -
Others 065 0.60
3658 8.58

19
For ended

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
In ¥ crore In ¥ crore
Suluries, wages und bonus lo emplayees 26970 23432
Contribution to provident and other (unds [See nole 26] 11.68 977
Shure based payment (o emplayees [See note 33] 1018 6,27
Stall weifare expenses 36l 393
295.17 25429

20 Finance costs

3t March 2025 31 March 2024

In ¥ crore In€crore

Interest on lease liubilities [Sce note 34] 215 31
275 3.3

21
Far the period ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In ¥ crore In @ crore
Depreciation on property, plunt end equipment 2522 2247
Anount amortised against intangible assels 3266 326
Impaincment recognised on intunpible assels 1267 -

[Sex note 3] 70.55 56.73



Bajaj Finsery Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

_For the perlad ended
31 March 2024
v
Advertisement branding and sales premiation B2 w7
Information Technology expenses 17.08 3961
Outsoureing + hack office expenses. 8.8 4920
Dealer incentive 44.08 271
Invocation of deposit under DLG guidelmes 1333 025
Businuss support charges [NES 1289
[aselling expenses 10.75 705
T'raiing and confirence 167 185
Repuirs and maintenance 351 202
Professional and leeal comsnltancy 502 320
Share issue expenses 240
Insurance 272 256
Pawe fuel waler ond consumables 191 175
Subseniplion wed fees 021 047
V'ayment 0 auditor 0.13 012
Rent [See note 34| 0.05 021
Miscellimeous evpenses 092 (K3
278 78 233 45
Pavment io uuditor
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
As auditor
Audit fee 012 01l
Other services (certifieation fees and other maliers) 00t 0ol
013 012
23 Tax expense
For the pesind ended
o
{u) Tax expense
Curient tax
Cunient (ax on profils for e year
Adjustments for current Iax of prior pericds
Total currenl LX expense
Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in defermed ax assets {(02d) (0 08)
{Decraase) incieuse in deferred Lok linbiliies (2] nos
Lotal deferred lax expenses (ene(it)
Tux expenses
(b) Reconcillation of (ax expensex and the accounting profit inultiplied by Tndia's tax 1ste
I*rolit heffore tx (44 82) (7263)
Tax at the Indian fax rute of 26% (I'ievious year - 26%0)
Tax cflccl of amounts which are deductide (non xable) in caleulating laxable income
= Income (rom fair valualion of mutual funds
Tus expense
24 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
31 March 2028 31 Maich 2024
u Profit / (loss) for the veur (2 crore) ns2) (1263)
Weighted ovetage number of shares outsianding during lle year (Nos) (Basic) 75,6233 3120000
Weighted overnge mumber of shiares oulstanding during (ie year (Nos) (Diluted) 3274 10.400 3274 10400
b lamings per share
Rasic and Diluted ¥ 164 56) 2121
Face value per share ¥ 10 10
The Company T outstanding loan which was converted into equity shares Since (e vonvertible equity shares were anti-dilutive in nature they are nal considered for the caleulation of Diluted Emings per share
25
’ or
Capilzl commilments
- towards oequisition of Intangibles 146 230
- lowards gequisition of operty. plant and equipmients P une
1 66 244



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

26

Liability for employee benefits has been ined by an acluary, for the purpose, in conformily with the principles set out in the indian Accounling Slandard

Funded schemes
Gratuity ©

The Company provides for graluily paymenls to employees The gratuily benefit payable to the employees of the Company is grealer of lhe provisions of the Payment of
Gratuily Act, 1972 and the Company's gratuity scheme Employees whe are in conlinuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for graluity. The gratuily planis a

funded plan and the Company makes conlribulions to approved gratuity fund

Present value of funded defined benefit obligalion
Fair value of plan assels

defined benefit

Current service cost
Interest on net defined benefil liabilily / (asset)

Opening amount i in OCl oulside of profit and loss
Remeasuremenls during lhe penod duve lo

Changes In (inancial assumplions

Changes in demographic assumplions.

Experience adjusimenls

Aclual return on plan assels less interesl on plan assels

Adjustment to recognize the effecl of asset celling

amaint rarannized in NCE autside statement of orofit and loss

Opening nel defined benefil liabilily / {assel)

Expense charged lo statement of profit and foss
Amounl recognized oulside statement ol profit and loss
Employer contribulions

Impact of liability assumed or (settled)*

of defined benefit obhigation
service cosl
on defined benefit obligalion
due to:
Acluanal loss / (gan) arising from change in financial assumplions
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes
paid
assumed /

* On account of business combination or inter group transfer

Opening fair value of plan assels
Employer contributions
Interest on plan assels
Remeasurements due to
Aclual return on plan assels less interesl on plan assels
Benefits paid
acquired / (setiled)”

or Inter group

Pune
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(005)
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{421)
034
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005
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2024
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Bajaj FInserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

of assets
value
quoted value

Insurer managed funds 920 704

Graluily 1s a lump sum plan and the cost of providing lhese benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic assumplions The key acluaial
assumptions 1o which the benefit obligation resuits are particularly sensitive la are discount rate and fulure salary escalation rate The following {able summarizes (he
impact In percentage lerms on the reporied defined benefil obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an Increase or decrease In the reported
assumplion by 50 basis points

As al
Discount Salary escalation Discount Salary

Senior staff

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -2 88% 286% -3 35% 33T%

Impact of decrease n 50 bps on DBO 302% -2 76% 3I54% -323%
Junior staff

Impacl of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3 29% 334% -326% 333%
These ivities have been 1o show the in defined benefit obligation in isolalion and assuming there are no other changes (n market conditions at
Lhe accounting date There have been no changes from the previeus perieds in the methads and i used in preparing lhe itwily analyses
Funding arrangementl

money conlributed by the Company to the fund to finance the habilittes of the plan has lo be invested

truslees of the plan have the of the fund ta an nsurance company The Insurance company in turn manages these funds as per

mandate provided to them by the frustees and the assel allocalion which is within the ible limits in lhe
is no compulsion on the part of lhe Company lo fully pre fund the liability of the Plan The Company s philosophy is lo fund Lhe benefils based on its own liquidity

tax posilion as well as level of under funding of the plan

below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefils 10

Between 1 -2 Between 2 -5 Over
Total
Mar 2025
stalf 058 058 173 528 817
staft 059 074 278 797 1208
Mar 2024
staff 028 028 B4 338 479
staff 045 047 159 2902 743
average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) at
Staff
slatf 676 651
rate{pa) 675%
1200%

escalation rate {p a ) - senior staff

eslimates of future salary increases, considered In actuarial valuation takes into account, inflalion, senionty, promelions and other relevant faclors such as demand
supply in the employment market

compensated absences cover the Company's hability for casual and earned leave

liability for accumulated leave which 1s eligible for encashment within he same calender year is provided for at prevailing salary rate for Lhe enlire unavailed leave

Provident fund

at

She Pune
Chartered
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

27 Segment information

Segment wise revenue, results and capital employed for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

In T crore
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Distribution Software Distribution Software
. . Total ) . Total
Business services Business services
Revenue
External sales and other income 440 49 121.36 561 85 337 31 99 25 436 56
Unallocable 36 58 38 58
Total revenue 440.49 121.36 598.43 337.31 99.25 475.14
Segment result (11.84) (49.27 (61.11) (31.87) (54.00) (85.87)
Unallocable result 11.42 13.12
Net profit/ (Loss} (11.84) (49.27 (49.69) (31.87 (54.00) (72.75)
Segment assets 69.40 39.18 108.58 40.58 24.52 65.10
Unallocated corpnorate assets 518.23 604.59
Total assets 69.40 39.18 626.81 40.58 24.52 669.69
Segment liabilitics 6.27 0.53 6.80 7.22 0.01 7.23
Unallocated corporate liabilities 141.56 134.32
Total liabilities 6.27 0.53 148.36 7.22 0.01 141.55
Canpital emploved 63.13 38.65 478.45 33.36 24.51 528.14

Pune
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Bajaj Finserv

Notes to finan

Direct Limited

cial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

29 Financial risk management

The Company has operations in India Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through a 1isk management framework, including

ongo

ing identification, measurement and monitoring subject to risk limits and other contiols The Company’s activities expose it to ciedit 1isk, liquidity 1isk

and macket risk

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets Credit ratings Setting limits on the amount of acceptable risk,
measuied at amortised cost and fair value diversification of investment limits, dealing with
through profit o1 loss creditworthy countes parties only
Trade receivables Credit Limit & No of overdue days, monitoring of ctedit limits
Apging analysis
Liquidity Risk Other liabilities Maturity Maintaining sufficient cash/cash equivalents and

analysis marketable securities

The Board of Directors provide guiding principles for overall 1isk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as, credit risk, liquidity tisk.

and i

A.C

nvestment of available funds

redit risk

Credit risk refeis to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations leading to a financial loss to the Company Credit tisk primarily
arises from cash equivalents. financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets measured at fair value through profit o1 loss and trade
reccivables

Credit Risk Management

In regaid to Trade receivables, which are typically unsecuied. credit 1isk is managed thiough continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customets
in the normal course of business Trade 1eceivables consist of 1egulated entities with stringent 1egulation on solvency which significantly mitigates ciedit
risk

For other financial assets the Company has an investment policy which allows the Company to invest only with counterparties having a credit 1ating equal
to or above AA+ and P1+ The Company reviews the cteditworthiness of these countetparties on an on-going basis

B. Liquidity Risk

C.O

The Company’s principal soutces of liquidity are funds infusion fiom shareholders, ‘cash and cash equivalents™ and cash flows that are generated fiom
opelations The Company believes that its working capital is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities within maturity petiod

The following table summarises the working capital position of the Company for the current yeat:

31 March 2025

In € crore
Current Assets 476 89
Less: Current Liabilities (124 13)
Working Capital 352.76

ther risk (Market Risk)

The Company has deployed its surplus funds in debt instruments (including thiough mutual funds) and money maiket instruments The Company is
exposed to price risk on such investments; which arises on account of movement in interest 1ates. liquidity and credit quality of undetlying secuiities

The Company has invested its sutplus funds primatily in debt instruments mutual funds with AAA & STABLE A1+ 1ating and thus the Company does not
have significant risk exposute here

Pune
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

30 Capital management

Risk management
The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital
requirements

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income genetating debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market
instruments depending on economic conditions in line with the guidelines set out by the management Safety of capital is of prime
importance to ensure availability of capital for operations Investment objective is to provide safety and adequate return on the surplus
funds

The following table summerizes the net capital position of the Company:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In & crore In % crore
Equity 478 45 528 14
Less: Tangible and other assets 125.69 153.48
Working capital (excluding investments) 5622 14.71
Investments 296.54 359.95

Pune



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

31 Fair value measurement

i) Financial instruments by category

Financial assets
Investments
- Liquid mutual funds
- Certificate of Deposits
- Bonds & Debentuies

Trade receivables

Other financial assets
Cash and cash eauivalents
Total financial assets

Financial liabilitics
Lease liability

Trade pavables

Other financial habilities
Total financial liabilities

FVTPL

1242

12.42

31-Mar-25

FVOCl

Pune

N

3

Amortised

145 24
148 87

8561
3219
41 84
453.75

3516
62 43
3136
128.95

FVTPL

3783

37.83

31-Mar-24

FVOCI

Amortised

Cost

147 52
174 60

68 86
3496
3001
455.95

4244
5672
2744
126.60



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2025

ii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instiuments that are (a) recognised and measwed at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fait values are disclosed in the financial statements To provide an indication about the 1eliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Company has classified its financial instiuments into the thiee levels prescribed under the accounung standard An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table

InT crore
Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at 31 March 2025
Particulars Notes Level € Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investiments at FVTPL
- Liquid mutual funds 4 1242 12 42
Total financial assets 12.42 12.42
InX crore
Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measnrements at 31 March 2024
Particulars Notes Tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments at FVPL
- Liauid mutual funds 4 3783 37.83
Total financial asscts 37.83 37.83

Thete have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2
The value of other {inancial assets is same as their fair value

Fait value is the price thal would be 1eceived 1o scli an asset o1 paid to tansfer a liability in an ordeily transaction in the ptincipal (o1 most advantageous) maikel at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i ¢ . an exit price), 1egatdless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation techmaque

Tn order to shiow how fait values have been derived. tinancial instiuments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techuiques, as explained below

Level 1: Level | hieraichy includes financial insttuments measured using quoted prices in active maikels Quotes would include 1ates/values/valuation refercnces published
periodically by BSE. NSE ete basis which trades take place in a linked or unlinked active market This includes ttaded bonds and mutual funds, as the case may be. (hat have
quoted price/iate/value

Level 2: The fair value of financial instiuments that are not traded in an active maiket are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of obscrvable maiket
data (either directly as prices or inditectly derived fiom prices) and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates 1t all significant inpuls required to fau value an
instrument are obseivable. the insttument is included in level 2

Level 3: 1f one or moie of the sigmficant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3 This is the case for unlisted equity sceurties,
contingent consideration and indemmnification asset included in level 3

Valuation Techniques used to determine fair value include
- Open ended mutual funds at NAV'shates declaied and/or quoted

- Close ended mutual funds at NAV's declaied by AMFI
Pune



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

32

Particulars
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Other non-cuirent assets

Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other cutrent assets
Total

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferted tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total

Net

31 March 2025
After 12 months

‘Within 12 months

296 54
8561
41.84
2617
20.72

470 88

1395

62.43
3136
1525
1.14
12413

34675

Pune

As at

5199
7504

999
602
6 88

14992

2121
302

24.23

12569

31 March 2024
Within 12 months

35995
68 86
3001

676
13 85
479.43

14 31

5672
27.44
13.92
1.03
113.42

366.01

In T crore

After 12 months

62.77
8520

2820
544

181 61

2813

2813

153.48



Bajaj Finserv Dircct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

33 Share-based payments (Empleyee option plan)

Baja) Finserv Limited (“Holding Company™) has established Employees stock options plan, 2018 (ESOP Scheme) for employees of the company The employee stock option plan, designed to priovide incentives to the employees
of the company and to deliver long-term returns and is an equity seltled plan Options granted under ESOP scheme would vest in not less than one year and not molie than five yeais fiom the date of grant of the options Under the
scheme, the company has granted 2,88,003 shaies ot vanious dates of X 1 each to its eligible employees Vesting of the options would be subject to contmuous employment with the Company and hence the options would vest
with passage of ime In addition (o this, the company may also specify certain perfoimance parameters subject to which the options would vest Such options would vest when the performance parameters are met

Once vesled the options remain exercisable over period of eight yeais from the date of vesting or such penod as may be decided by the company at its sole discretion from time to time Options gianted under the plan aie for no
consideration and carty no dividend or voling rights On exeicise, each option is convertible into one equity share

Qat ant halmir ic a cimmans af antiane araniad inder the nlan

31 Mareh 2025 31 Mairch 2024
Particulars Number ol entions Number of ontions
Opening balance 749,673 726150
Granted duiing the year 2,88,003 2,03,168
Excercised during the year 2.34,296 1,26,120
Forfeited during the year 67,401 53,525
Closing balance o 7.35,979 749,673
Vested and excercisable 2,49,802 286330

No options expied dusing the year

Fair value ol options gianted

Tranche |

The fair value at giant date of oplions granted on |6 May 2019 was T 177 10 per option The fau value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account the exeicise piice, the tetm of (he oplion,
the shaie ptice at grant date and expecied volatlity of the underlymnyg share the expected dividend yield and the nisk fiee interest rale for the term of the option

Tranche 11
The fait value at giant date of options granted on 21 May 2020 was T 159 70 per option The fau value al girant date 1s determmned using the Black Scholes model which takes imto account (he exercise puice, the teim of the option,
the share price at prant date and expected volanlity of the undeilymg share the expected dividend yreld and the nisk fiee interest 1ate for the teim of the option

Tranche 111
The fan value at grant date of options wianted on 28 Apul 2021 was ¥ 335 00 per option The fan value at giant date is determmed using the Black Scholes model wihich takes into account the exercise price, the term of (he
option the share price at grant date and expected volaulity of the undeilying shaie, the expected dividend yield and the nisk free interesl rate for the term of the option

Tranche IV
The fau value at grant date of options gianted on 27 April 2022 was I 509 40 per option The faii value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account the exeicise price. the term of the
opuion the share price at giant date and expected volathty of the undeilying shaie, the expected dividend yield and the risk fiee interest 1ate for the term of the option

Tranche V
The fau value at grant date of options granted on 27 Apnl 2023 was T 437 16 per option The fan vatue at grani date is determined using the Black Scholes model which 1akes into account the exeicise price, the tesm of the
option the share price at grant dale and expected volaniity of the undeilying share, the expected dividend yreld and the risk fiee interest rate for the term of the option

Tranche VI
The fau value at grant date of options granted on 26 Apnl 2024 was ¥ 519 41 per option The fair value at granl date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the share price at giant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interesl rate for the term of the oplion

The model inputs for options gianted are as under

Tranche [ Tranche 11 Tranche IT1 Tranche IV Tranche V Tranche V1
a) options ate gianted for no consideration and vesting period is: 4 years 4 years 4 yeais 4 years 4 years 4 yeais
b) exercise price: X 761 75 per option 3470 21 per option T 1,009 14 per option 31,482 64 per option 31,334 7 per option T 1,655 55 per option
c) grant date 16 May 2019 21 May 2020 28 Apnl 2021 27 Apnl 2022 27 Aprit 2023 26 Apiil 2024
d} expiry dare 15 May 2023 20 May 2024 28 April 2025 27 Apiil 2026 27 April 2027 26 April 2028
) shate price at giant date 276175 T47021 31,009 14 T 1,48264 T1,33470 T 1,655 55
1) expected price volatility of the Company's shares 30 40% 3556% 3677% 34 34%-37 99% 32 12%-35 3% 2519%-37 66%
u) expected dividend yield 0 02% 005% 0 05% 002% 003% 005%
h} nsk-fiee nterest 1ate: 7 56% 6 35% 6 62% 5 35%-6 56% 6 78%-6 93% 703%-7 1%

The expected price volaulity 1s based on the histonic volatihty (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information

Pune
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34

(A)

(B)

)

(D)

(E)

Leases

Lease liability movement

Particulars

Opening balance

Add: Addition during the year
Interest on lease liabiltiy

Less: Deletion during the year
Lease rental payment

Balance at the end of the year

For the period ended

31 March 2025
In ¥ crore

42 44
7.60
2.75
| 20
16 42

35.16

31 March 2024

In ¥ crore

43 41
12 81
330
303
14 05
42.44

Lease rentals of ¥ 0.03 crore (Previous year 0.05) pertaining to short-term leases and low value assets has been charged to Statement of

Profit and Loss

Future lease cash outflow for all leased assets

Particulars

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than 5 years

Maturity analysis of lease liability

Particulars

Within 12 months
After 12 months

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge for the year
(Gain)/loss on pre-mature lease closure

As at

31 March 2025
In E crore

1618
23 06
39.24

As at

31 March 2025
In ¥ crore

13.95
21.21
35.16

31 March 2024
In E crore

2037

48 75

69.12

31 March 2024
In ¥ crore

14 31
2813
42.44

For the period ended

31 March 2025
In ¥ crore

275
14.81
003
17.59

Pune

31 March 2024

In ¥ crore

330
13 46
022
16.98
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j Finserny Direet Limited

Notes ta financlal Matements for the year ended 31 March 2025

36 Contingent llabllities As at

Claims against the Company ot acknowledued as debis

37 Other Notes
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BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED
11" DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2024-25

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors present the Eleventh Annual Report along with the audited financial statements for
FY2025.

Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (‘BFSD’ or ‘BFS-Direct’) has 2 synergistic divisions viz., Bajaj Markets and
Bajaj Technology Services. Bajaj Market is a financial services marketplace that offers multiple financial
services products across categories including - Loans, Credit Cards, Insurances & Investments. It has
over 96 onboarded partners with over 24 crore annual visitors on its digital properties. Bajaj Technology
Servicesfocuses on building digital-first solutions for BFSI businesses, and reimagining customer
experiences and operations by focusing on eight practices: Digital experience, Commerce, Data
engineering and analytics, Al, Cloud, CRM, Digital agency, Engineering.

BFS-Direct is registered with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India as a composite
Corporate Agent (CA0551) for distribution of insurance (life and general) products in India. The
Company is also registered with SEBI through its Investment Advisory Department as an Investment
Advisor (INAOO0OO16083) through which it offers various financial products and services to its
customers. These are channelized through its partners listed on its digital platform.

The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 are given

below:
(Rs. in crore)

Total Income from operations ' 598.43 475.14
Less: Expenditure excluding depreciation 576.70 491.04
Less: Depreciation 70.55 56.73
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (48.82) (72.63)

Less: Provision for Tax — Current -

Less: Deferred tax

Profit / (Loss) After Tax (48.82) (72.63)
Add: Other comprehensive income - -
Add: Actuarial gain/(losses) (0.87) (0.12)
Less: Tax on above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.87) (0.12)
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income / (Loss) for the year (49.69) (72.75)

b g £
[=¥a

v and transfer 1o reserves

Considering the operating and accumulated losses, no dividend is being recommended, nor any
amount is proposed for transfer to reserves.
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During the year under review, following changes in share capital of the Company are made:

e The shareholders vide an ordinary resolution passed at its meeting held on 7 March 2025, increased
the authorized capital from Rs. 3,50,00,000 (Rupees Three Crore Fifty Lakh) divided into 35,00,000
equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) to Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees Five
Hundred Crore) divided into 50,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only).

¢ The Company converted its outstanding loans into equity, thereby increasing the issued, subscribed

and paid-up equity share capital. The equity share capital stood at Rs.
3,27,41,04,000 (Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty-Seven Crore Forty-One Lakh and Four
Thousand only) represented by 32,74,10,400 equity shares of face value Rs.10/-. As on 31

March 2025, Bajaj Finserv Limited and Bajaj Finance Limited hold 80.10% and 19.90% of the paid-
up share capital respectively.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any convertible securities, shares with
differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it granted any stock options.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or a joint venture company. Accordingly, the
requirement of attaching form AOC-1 is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, no company has ceased to be subsidiary, associate or a joint venture of the Company.

The Company witnessed 29% increase in revenue from operations on the back of 24% rise in income
from distribution business and 22% rise in technology services business. It remains well funded for its
future plans.

Directors and Key Managernal Personnel

Change in Directorate:

1. During the year under review, the Board, appointed Anurag Chottani (DIN:09804643) as an
Additional, Non-executive and Non-Independent Director, liable to retire by rotation, with effect
from 1 August 2024. His appointment is subject to shareholders approval at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM).

2. During the year under review, the Board, re-appointed Sujith Sukumaran
(DIN:09234416) as a Whole-time Director of the Company for a term of three (3) consecutive
years form 1 November 2024 to 31 October 2027 subject to approval of shareholders. The re-
appointment was further approved by shareholders at their Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 23 October 2024.

The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the
governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders. The present composition broadly
meets this objective.

A brief profile of directors is available on the website at www bajaifinservmarkets.infaboutus.
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The Board at its meeting held on 28 April 2025, redesignated Ashish Panchal (DIN:10106286), as the
Managing Director (MD) and Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective 1 May 2025. His
appointment as MD is subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM.

Retirement by Rotation:

Ashish Panchal, being the director liable to retire by rotation, offers himself for re-appointment at the
ensuing AGM. The information as required to be disclosed in case of re-appointment of the director is
provided in the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

During the year under review, the Board, appointed Anshuman Mishra (ICAl MRN: 403752) as the
Chief Financial Officer and Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company effective
1 February 2025.

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration of independence, stating that they meet the
criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act. They have also confirmed
compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors.

A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Act in
the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
www bajalfinservmarkets in/legal-and-compliance/MGT-9 and
hitos ffwww . baiaitechnologyservices.com/investor-relation

Number of mestings of the Board

During the FY2025, the Board of Directors met five times, viz., 23 April 2024, 23 July 2024, 18 October
2024, 27 January 2025 and 7 March 2025. The time gap between any two consecutive meetings has
been less than one hundred and twenty days.

~ As on 31 March 2025, the composition of the Board was as under:

Sr. No. | Name of Director Category
1 Anish Amin ' Non — Executive Director, Chairman
2 Mayur Chokshi Non — Executive, Independent Director
3 Mayur Patwardhan Non — Executive, Independent Director
4 Jasmine Chaney Non — Executive, Independent Director
5 Ashish Panchal Whole — Time Director and CEO
6 Sujith Sukumaran Whole — Time Director
7 Anurag Chottani** Additional, Non-executive, Non-Independent Director

**Anurag Chottani was appointed as the Additional Director of Board effective 1 August 2024.
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In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, the directors, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, state that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of

the Company for FY2025;

(i) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that, to the best of their knowledge, such systems were adequate and were

operating effectively.

In terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Audit Committee.
During the year under review, the Committee met four times, viz., 23 April 2024, 23 July 2024, 18
October 2024 and 27 January 2025.

As on 31 March 2025, the composition of the Committee was as under:

Sr. Name of Director Category
No.
1 | Mayur Patwardhan Chairman, Non — Executive, Independent Director
Mayur Chokshi Non — Executive, Independent Director
3 | Anish Amin Non — Executive Director

All members of the Committee are Chartered Accountants having worked with reputed firms and have
vast experience in assurance and auditing practices.

The terms of reference of the Committee, infer alia, cover recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company, reviewing and monitoring the
auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process, examination of the financial
statements and auditors report thereon, approval and subsequent modification of transactions with
related parties, scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investment, evaluation of internal financial controls
and risk management systems, monitoring end use of funds raised through public offers and any other
function as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

The Board accepted all recommendations, made during the year, by the Audit Committee.
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In terms of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. During the year under review, the Committee met Three times, viz.,
23 April 2024, 23 July 2024 and 18 October 2024 respectively.

As on 31 March 2025, the composition of the Committee was as under:

Sr. No. | Name of Director Category

1. Mayur Chokshi Chairman, Non — Executive, Independent Director
2. Mayur Patwardhan Non — Executive, Independent Director

3. Anish Amin Non — Executive Director

The terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, cover identification of persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommendation to the Board regarding their appointment and removal, formulation of the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees, specification of the manner for effective evaluation of the performance of Board,
its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and
compliance, and any other function as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board has framed a
remuneration policy. This policy, inter-alia, provides:

(a) The criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors; and
(b) Policy on remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

The policy is directed towards a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and retain
talent; and provides for a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The remuneration policy is available on the Company's website and can be accessed at
www. bajaifinservmarkets.in/content/dam/bajajfinserv/notices/RemunerationPolicy. pdf and
Remuneration Policy V1

The Independent Directors are paid a sitting fee of Rs. 5,000/- for Board and Committee meetings
attended by them.

Particudars of Loans, Guar 5 and Investments

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or securities under
section 186 of the Act.

Details of investments made are a part of notes to financial statements which form part of the Annual
Report.

The Company does not have in place an Employee Stock Option Scheme. Employees of the Company
are eligible to receive of stock options from Bajaj Finserv Limited, listed holding company.
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All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties during the year
under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act including on arm’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company under the Act. None of the transactions
required members’ prior approval under the Act.

Details of transactions with related parties during FY2025 are provided in the notes to the financial
statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence,
the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this report.

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of financial year and the date of this Report.

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms of section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is stated as

below:

The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature. Considering the nature of
operations, no particulars regarding technology absorption are required to be given in this Report.

(b Foreign bxchange earming

The total foreign exchange earnings in FY2025 in terms of actual inflows was Rs. 0.03 crore
(FY2024: NIL).

The total foreign exchange outgo in FY2025 in terms of actual outflows amounted to Rs. 11.21 crore
as against Rs 4.04 crore in FY2024.

The Company has put in place an adequate and effective risk reporting system. In the opinion of the
Board, there are no residual risks, which would threaten the existence of the Company.

I T W E P
d by the regulators or courts

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any regulator or
court or tribunal, impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Adeguacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size, scale and
complexity of operations with reference to its financial statements. These have been designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding recording and providing reliable financial information, ensuring
integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaining accounting records and
prevention and detection of frauds and errors. The Audit Committee and Board reviewed the said
controls and found them in order.
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Pursuant to the Act, the independent directors must hold at least one meeting in a year without the
presence of non-independent directors and members of the Management. Accordingly, independent
directors of the Company met on 15 January 2025. All the independent directors were present at the
meeting.

The independent directors, inter alia:

* reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

+ reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 taking
into account the views of the executive directors; and

+ assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

Pursuant to section 178 of the Act, the NRC and Board have decided that the evaluation shall be carried
out by the Board only and the NRC will only review its implementation and compliance. Further, as per
Schedule 1V of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire
Board excluding the director being evaluated.

On the basis of the report of the performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or
continue the term of appointment of independent director.

Accordingly, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, that
of its Committees and Individual directors.

The manner in which formal annual evaluation of performance was carried out by the Board for the
financial year 2024-25 is given below:

e Based on the criteria for performance evaluation, a questionnaire-cum-rating sheet was
deployed using an IT platform for seeking confidential feedback of the directors with regard to
the performance of the Board, its Committees, Independent directors and Individual directors.

¢ From the individual ratings received from the directors, a report on summary of ratings in respect
of performance evaluation for the year 2024-25 and a consolidated report thereof were arrived
at. The aforesaid report was then discussed and noted by the Board at its meeting held on 28
April 2025.

e The NRC reviewed the implementation and compliance of the performance evaluation at its
meeting held on 28 April 2025 and opined these to be compliant with applicable provisions and
found it to be satisfactory.

» Based on the aforementioned report and evaluation, the Board determined that the term of
appointment of all independent directors may continue.

¢ Other than Chairman of the Board and Chairman of NRC, no other director had access to the

individual ratings given by directors.

VA by - PP S
VNS Jer poiicy

The Whistle Blower Policy is created with an objective to provide a safe and secured framework wherein
the employee can report those actions, occurrences, events, observations or any concerns about
unethical behaviour, any actual or suspected fraud, violations of legal or regulatory requirements or
Code of Conduct Policy of Company, misrepresentations or any physiologically adverse work
conditions etc. without fear of victimization.
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The concerns may be reported through email at bfdlwhistleblower@bajajfinserv.in and shall be kept
confidential. Pursuant to the Whistle Blower Policy, the complaints, if any, are brought to their attention
of Disciplinary Action Committee. The Committee deals with the same in accordance with the Policy.
All the complaints brought to their attention and the actions taken and progress status of each complaint
is placed quarterly to the Audit Committee and Board.

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards on
meetings of the Board of Directors (SS—1) and General Meetings (SS—2) read with the MCA circulars.

Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal audit is to identify,
assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute to the systems of internal controls and
governance processes followed by the Company. Key elements of internal audit are assurance on
controls, governance and compliance, business risk assessment and its mitigation and process
optimization.

The Audit Committee approves the Internal Audit plan for each quarter at the commencement of the
financial year. Significant audit observations, corrective and preventive actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Committee reviews the internal audit observations
and the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and systems.

During FY2025, Jayesh Kulkarni stepped down as the internal auditor of the Company with effect from
31 January 2025 and Ms. Vedvati Kulkarni, Principal — Internal Audit, was appointed as Internal Auditor
of the Company w.e.f. 1 February 2025.

Statutory Auditors

Shareholders at the AGM held on 25 July 2022, appointed KKC & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditor for a term of four years i.e. from the conclusion of 8th AGM
till the conclusion of 12th AGM.

The statutory audit report for the FY2025, does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act, and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board appointed Sachin Bhagwat, Practicing
Company Secretary (ACS No. A10189, CP No0.6029), to undertake secretarial audit of the Company
for FY2025.

The secretarial audit report for the FY2025, does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer. The same is annexed to this Report.

In terms of Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Company has entered
into tripartite agreement with National Securities Depository Ltd (NSDL) and KFin Technologies Ltd. for
admission of its equity shares with NSDL. All equity shares of the Company are in dematerialised mode.
The Company has complied with other conditions prescribed in the said rule.
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As such transfer or any issue of shares of the company will be in dematerialised mode only. The issue
of shares pursuant to conversion of loans was in dematerialized mode.

Pursuant to the ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013’, the Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. The disclosure as required under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, is given below:

Particulars Number of cases
Number of complaints filed during FY2025 3
Number of complaints disposed off / closed during FY2025 3
Number of complaints pending at the end of FY2025 0

The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable
to the Company.

¢ Inthis report, any reference to the statutory or regulatory guidelines, acts, circulars, regulations,
notifications and directions, unless the context otherwise requires, be construed to include any
amendments, modifications, updations or re-enactment thereof as the case may be.

e There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
e The financial statements of the Company are placed on the Company’s website in the Annual

Report section at www bajaifinservmarkets.in/aboutus and [nvestor Relation - Bajaj Technology
Services

e During FY2025, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections
73 and 74 of the Act read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
as amended.

e The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported under section
197(12) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company.

e During the year under review, the whole-time directors were not in receipt of any remuneration
or commission from Bajaj Finserv Limited, the holding company. Hence, the disclosure as
required under section 197(14) of the Act is not applicable.

o Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as required under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company.

e Neither any application was made, nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during FY2025 against the Company.

¢ During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Secretarial Auditor or
Statutory Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board under section 143(12) of the Act.
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e During FY2025, there was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or Financial
Institutions. Therefore, as per rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, reasons of
difference in the valuation at the time of one-time settlement and valuation done while taking
loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions are not reported.

The Board places its gratitude and appreciation for the support and co—operation from its members,
regulators and business partners. The Board also places on record its sincere appreciation for the
commitment and hard work put in by the Management and the Employees.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bajaj Finserv Direct Ltd.

s

#’x\k A D AN >&/\/\ AN

Anish Amin
Chairman

DIN: 00070679
Place: Pune

Date: 28 April 2025
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